
Town Council Special Meeting 1 6/15/2020 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 

Town Council Special Meeting 

Monday, June 15, 2020 

Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Pete Brown, Vice Chairman Dean Markham, Council Members Tim Feegel, 

Derek Johnson, Barbara Moore, Mark Philhower, and Kevin Reich and Town Manager David Cox. 

Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. via Zoom 

Action related to the Town & Board of Education Budgets 

Consideration of a motion to approve a Resolution adopting the FY2020-2021 Education 

Budget in the final amount of $32,132,300 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Johnson, to adopt the resolution as presented and 

read.  Voted (6-1) Mr. Philhower against.  The full resolution will be included with the minutes filed 

in the Town Clerk’s Office. 

Prior to the vote, after discussion, Mr. Reich made a motion, seconded by Ms. Moore, to call the vote.  

Voted (7-0) 

Consideration of a motion to approve a Resolution adopting the FY 2020-2021 Town 

Government Budget in the final amount of $15,220,497 

A revised resolution was presented to the Town Council increasing the Town Government budget to 

$15,305,497 which includes adding in the Young Adult Librarian. The full resolution will be included 

with the minutes filed in the Town Clerk’s Office. 

A motion was made by Mr. Markham, seconded by Mr. Johnson, to adopt the resolution as presented 

and read.  Voted (6-1) Mr. Philhower against. 

Consideration of a motion to establish a mill rate of 33.27 to support the FY2020-2021 Budget 

and authorize use of up to $509,000 in accumulated surplus in FY2020-2021 

The amount of the use of accumulated surplus was raised to $594,000.  The mill rate will remain the 

same as last year at 33.27. 

A motion was made by Ms. Moore, seconded by Mr. Johnson, to establish a mill rate of 33.27 to 

support the FY2020-2021 Budget and authorize use of up to $594,000 in accumulated surplus in 

FY2020-2021.  Voted (6-1) Mr. Philhower against. 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Ms. Moore, to adjourn the meeting at 7:40pm.  Voted 

(7-0) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 

Recording Clerk 

Agenda Item #3a



 

Town Council Special Meeting  1 6/17/2020 Minutes  

Town of East Hampton 

Town Council Special Meeting 

Wednesday, June 17, 2020 

Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

 

MINUTES 

 

Present: Chairman Pete Brown, Vice Chairman Dean Markham, Council Members Tim Feegel, 

Derek Johnson, Barbara Moore, Mark Philhower, and Kevin Reich and Town Manager David Cox. 

 

Call to Order 

Chairman Brown called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. via Zoom 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Markham, seconded by Mr. Reich, to adopt the agenda as presented.  

Voted (7-0) 

 

Consideration of a motion to correct the mill rate to 33.14 for FY 2020-2021 

A motion was made by Mr. Markham, seconded by Mr. Johnson, to reconsider the Town Council 

action at the Monday, June 15, 2020 Special Meeting for the consideration of a motion to establish a 

mill rate of 33.27 to support the FY2020-2021 budget and authorize the use of up to $594,000 in 

accumulated surplus in FY 2020-2021.  Voted (7-0) 

 

Mr. Cox explained that a clerical error was found in the budget documents that were brought forward 

from last year’s budget preparations to the current year’s documents. 

 

A motion was made by Mr. Markham, seconded by Mr. Johnson, to establish the mill rate of 33.14 to 

support the FY 2020-2021 budget and authorize the use of up to $594,000 in accumulated surplus in 

FY 2020-2021.  Voted (6-1) Mr. Philhower against. 

 

Mr. Markham explained that the shortfall of approximately $144,000 will be made up with not hiring 

the Police Officer until January 1 and the Young Adult Librarian until October and the tax collection 

rate should be higher than the stated 98.5%. 

 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Johnson, to adjourn the meeting at 6:42pm.  

Voted (7-0) 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 

Cathy Sirois 

Recording Clerk 



Town Council Regular Meeting 1 6/23/2020 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 

Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, June 23, 2020 

Virtual Meeting via Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Pete Brown (arrived at 6:35pm), Vice Chairman Dean Markham, Council 

Members Tim Feegel, Derek Johnson, Barbara Moore, Mark Philhower, and Kevin Reich and Town 

Manager David Cox. 

Call to Order 

Vice Chairman Markham called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

Adoption of Agenda: 

A motion was made by Ms. Moore, seconded by Mr. Philhower, to adopt the agenda as written.  

Voted (6-0) 

Approval of Minutes 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Ms. Moore, to approve the minutes of the Town 

Council Regular Meeting of June 9, 2020 as written. Voted (6-0) 

Public Remarks 

None 

Presentations 

None 

Bids & Contracts 

None 

Resolution/ Ordinances/ Policies/ Proclamation 

None 

Continued Business 

Approval of 2020-2021 Public Water System Operating Budget & Water Use Rate 

The 2020-2021 Public Water System Operating Budget & Water Use Rate was approved by the 

WPCA and forwarded on to the Town Council.  The WPCA held a public hearing on the budget with 

no comments received.  There is no increase in rates for this budget.  The full budget will be included 

with the minutes filed in the Town Clerk’s Office. 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Johnson, to approve the 2020/2021 Public Water 

System Operating Budget and to establish rates in the amount of $40 per month per EMI plus $11.50 

per 1,000 gallons of water use.  Voted (7-0) 

New Business 

Discussion of Funding Plans for High School Baseball Field, Tennis Court and Track 

Improvements 

Agenda Item #3b



Town Council Regular Meeting 2 6/23/2020 Minutes 

Mr. Cox explained that the Capital Committee reviewed the Capital plan that proposed financing the 

work needed to renovate the High School baseball field, tennis court and track rather than attempting 

to fund the items using current taxes.  The total for the three projects would be approximately 

$950,000.  There is approximately $900,000 in the authorized bonding amount for the high school 

project.  This amount could be allocated to these projects and combined with the funds in the Capital 

Reserve Fund for the track replacement of approximately $189,000 to provide funding.  It is the 

Council’s decision whether to move forward with this plan.  Jeremy Hall, Director of Parks & 

Recreation, was present to provide additional details on the projects.  After discussion, Mr. Philhower 

and Mr. Feegel requested a 2nd reading on this item.  It will be included on the next meeting agenda. 

Town Manager Report 

Mr. Cox provided an overview of the Town Manager Report, which will be included with the minutes 

filed in the Town Clerk’s Office.  In addition to the information in his report, Mr. Cox provided an 

update on the Building Department operations.  This report will also be included with the minutes 

filed in the Town Clerk’s Office. Another update on the Building Department will be included on the 

July 14th agenda. He also noted that tax bills will be mailed out soon and that the low interest rate 

program is available for taxpayers if needed. Mr. Cox provided an update on the 20 East High Street 

property which is included on the agenda report. 

Mr. Markham asked for an update on 1 Watrous Street and 13 Summit Street. Mr. Cox noted that 1 

Watrous is in the midst of a Phase II study.  There has been interest in the properties. 

Appointments 

A motion was made by Mr. Markham, seconded by Mr. Philhower, to appoint George Coshow (term 

through April 30, 2022) and Linda Ursin (term through April 30, 2024) to the Ethics Commission 

and to reappoint Gabe Stein to the Ethics Commission (term through April 30, 2024).  Voted (7-0) 

Tax Refunds 

None 

Public Remarks 

Tom Seidl, Jacobson Farm Road, commented that he appreciates the discussion on the High School 

baseball field and how much it is needed. In 2018 the team was only able to have 4 practices on the 

field and all of their home games needed to be rescheduled on the road.   

Communications, Correspondence & Announcement 

None 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Ms. Moore, to adjourn the meeting at 8:00pm.  Voted 

7-0) 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Cathy Sirois 

Recording Clerk 



Agenda Item 7a







.

TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON 

 AGENDA REPORT 

Agenda Item:  8A 

Item to be presented by:  Jeff Jylkka 

DATE:  July 14, 2020 

SUBJECT:  Bond refunding 

DEPARTMENT:  Finance 

BACKGROUND 

The Town issued debt in 2006 and 2009 to finance various capital improvement projects. These bonds 

carry interest rates varying from 2.5% to 5.0% with an average outstanding coupon rate of 4.2%. 

Current municipal interest rates are at historic lows and both of the above-mentioned bond issues are 

eligible to be re-financed. The majority of savings will come from the 2009 issue. While 

there is only one payment left on the 2006 issue, I thought it made sense to add it as it 

gives the Town the option to re-finance if it makes economic sense. We should expect to 

see savings from $100-$125K, depending on market conditions at the time of sale. This 

re-financed issue will occur in conjunction with the sale of Town Hall bonds scheduled in 

late August. By combining the re-financing with the Town Hall bonds we can realize 

savings on our issue costs.   

RECOMMENDED MOTION 

See attached. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS 

Not to approve the resolution. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The total budget savings over the next 9 years is estimated to be $100,000 - $125,000. 



RESOLUTION OF EAST HAMPTON TOWN COUNCIL 

AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF NOT EXCEEDING $1,500,000 REFUNDING 

BONDS FOR PAYMENT IN WHOLE OR IN PART OF THE OUTSTANDING 

PRINCIPAL OF AND INTEREST AND ANY CALL PREMIUM ON THE TOWN'S 

($3,175,000 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, ISSUE OF 2006, AND $2,985,000 

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, ISSUE OF 2009, AND RELATED COSTS 

BE IT RESOLVED, 

(a) That the Town of East Hampton issue its refunding bonds, in an amount not to 

exceed ONE MILLION FIVE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,500,000), the proceeds 

of which are hereby appropriated: (1) to be applied, or to fund one or more escrows, the balance 

held in such escrows, together with the investment earnings thereon, to be applied, by the Town to 

the payment in whole or in part, as to be determined by the Chairman or the Vice-Chairman of the 

Town Council and the Town Manager or the Finance Director of the Town, of the outstanding 

principal of and interest and any call premium on the Town’s $3,175,000 General Obligation 

Bonds, Issue of 2006, and $2,985,000 General Obligation Bonds, Issue of 2009, including the 

payment of interest accrued on said bonds to the date of payment, and (2) to pay costs of issuance 

of the refunding bonds authorized hereby, including legal fees, consultants’ fees, trustee or escrow 

agent fees, underwriters’ fees, net interest and other financing costs and other costs related to the 

payment of the outstanding bonds described above.  The refunding bonds shall be issued pursuant 

to Section 7-370c of the General Statutes of Connecticut, Revision of 1958, as amended, and any 

other enabling acts.  The bonds shall be general obligations of the Town secured by the irrevocable 

pledge of the full faith and credit of the Town.  The Chairman or the Vice-Chairman of the Town 

Council and the Town Manager or the Finance Director of the Town shall sign the bonds by their 

manual or facsimile signatures.  The law firm of Day Pitney LLP is designated as bond counsel to 

approve the legality of the bonds.  The Chairman or the Vice-Chairman of the Town Council and 

the Town Manager or the Finance Director are authorized to determine the amount, date, interest 

rates, maturities, redemption provisions, form and other details of the bonds; to designate one or 

more banks or trust companies to be certifying bank, registrar, transfer agent and paying agent for 

the bonds; to provide for the keeping of a record of the bonds or  notes; to sell the bonds at public 

or private sale; to deliver the bonds; and to perform all other acts which are necessary or 

appropriate to issue the bonds. 

(b) That the Town hereby declares its official intent under Federal Income Tax 

Regulation Section 1.150-2 that costs of the refunding may be paid from temporary advances of 

available funds and that (except to the extent reimbursed from grant moneys) the Town reasonably 

expects to reimburse any such advances from the proceeds of borrowings in an aggregate principal 

amount not in excess of the amount of borrowing authorized above for the refunding.  The 

Chairman or the Vice-Chairman of the Town Council and the Town Manager or the Finance 

Director are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as they deem necessary or 

advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and covenants as they deem 

necessary or advisable in order to maintain the continued exemption from federal income taxation 

of interest on the bonds authorized by this resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including 

covenants to pay rebates of investment earnings to the United States in future years. 



(c) That the Chairman or the Vice-Chairman of the Town Council and the Town 

Manager or the Finance Director are authorized to make representations and enter into written 

agreements for the benefit of holders of the bonds to provide secondary market disclosure 

information, which agreements may include such terms as they deem advisable or appropriate in 

order to comply with applicable laws or rules pertaining to the sale or purchase of such bonds. 

(d) That the Chairman or the Vice-Chairman of the Town Council and the Town 

Manager or the Finance Director are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or 

desirable to enable the Town to effectuate the refunding of all or a portion of the Town’s 

$3,175,000 General Obligation Bonds, Issue of 2006, and $2,985,000 General Obligation Bonds, 

Issue of 2009, and to issue refunding bonds authorized hereby for such purposes, including, but 

not limited to, the entrance into agreements on behalf of the Town with underwriters, trustees, 

escrow agents, bond insurers and others to facilitate the issuance of the refunding bonds, the 

escrow of the proceeds thereof and investment earnings thereon, and the payment of the 

outstanding bonds in whole or in part. 

(e) That the above authorization to issue refunding bonds shall lapse on June 30, 2021.  

**************************************** 

Approved this 14th day of July 2020. 

TOWN COUNCIL 

___________________________________ 

James Brown, Chairperson  

ATTEST 

_________________________________ 

Kelly Bilodeau, Town Clerk 



.

TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON 

 AGENDA REPORT 

Agenda Item:  8B/C 

Item to be presented by:  Jeff Jylkka 

DATE:  July 14, 2020 

SUBJECT:  Lease financing 

DEPARTMENT:  Finance 

BACKGROUND 

Included in the FY 2021 capital plan are two Public Works pieces of equipment proposed 

to be lease financed. The two items are an International dump truck ($176,250) and an 

excavator ($110,000). We have been quoted a rate of 2.17% for a 7-year term. $50,000 has 

been budgeted in the General Fund debt line for new lease payments. Separate 

resolutions are provided for your consideration. We are proposing the equipment be 

financed through a tax-exempt, municipal government lease. The Town currently has four 

similar leases outstanding. 

RECOMMENDED MOTION 

See attached. 

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS 

Not to approve the resolution. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Annual lease payments are anticipated to be $43,706.27. The first lease payment starts in FY 2021 

and ends in FY 2027. 



TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON OF THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LEASE-PURCHASE FINANCING TO FINANCE 

ACQUISITON OF A PUBLIC WORKS HEAVY DUTY TRUCK AND RELATED 

EQUIPMENT 

July 14, 2020 

WHEREAS, the Town of East Hampton of the State of Connecticut (the "Town") 

contemplates entering into a lease-purchase agreement to finance the costs of acquisition of a 

Public Works Heavy Duty Truck and equipment related thereto (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town has determined that a true and very real need 

exists for the acquisition of the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council has taken the necessary steps, including any legal bidding 

requirements, under applicable law to arrange for the acquisition of the Project; and  

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that interest on such lease-purchase financing shall be 

exempt from Federal income taxation; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council hereby determines that such a lease-purchase financing is 

in the best interests of Town; and  

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that a payment may be due under the Agreement during the 

fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 and that the general fund has amounts sufficient for such payment; 

and 

WHEREAS, the lease-purchase financing agreement will contain a non-appropriation 

provision; and 

WHEREAS, The Town Council has the powers, among others, (1) to provide for the due 

execution of contracts of the Town, (2)  to lease real and personal property for the Town, and (3) 

to enter into contracts for any services and to purchase or contract to purchase any supplies, 

materials, equipment and other commodities required by the Town.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON:  

1. That the Town undertake a lease-purchase financing in a principal amount not to

exceed $176,250, and with an amortization period not to exceed seven (7) years, to finance the 

costs of the Project, the first payment on the lease-purchase financing may be made in the 2020/21 

fiscal year from the general fund.  The Project may include acquisition costs, equipment, legal 

fees, capitalized net interest cost and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the Project 

and its financing.   

2 That the Town Manager or the Finance Director of the Town are authorized to 

negotiate, approve, execute and deliver on behalf of the Town any lease-purchase agreement and 

any certificates or documents related to the acquisition or the financing and are authorized to 



-2- 

determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, prepayment terms, form and other details 

of the lease-purchase agreement; and to perform all other acts and execute all other documents 

which are necessary or appropriate to enter into the lease-purchase agreement, including without 

limitation any agreement with regards to the escrow of the proceeds of the lease-purchase 

agreement.   

3. That the Town Council, acting on behalf of the Town, hereby declares the Town's

official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that costs of the Project may 

be funded initially from available funds of the Town, and that the Town reasonably expects to 

reimburse any such initial funding sources from the proceeds of the lease-purchase financing for 

the Project in an aggregate principal amount anticipated not to exceed $176,250.  The Chairman 

or the Vice-Chairman of the Town Council and the Town Manager or the Finance Director of the 

Town are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as the Chairman or the Vice-

Chairman of the Town Council and the Town Manager or the Finance Director of the Town deems 

necessary or advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and covenants as the 

Chairman or the Vice-Chairman of the Town Council and the Town Manager or the Finance 

Director of the Town deem necessary or advisable in order to maintain the continued exemption 

from federal income taxation of interest on the lease-purchase agreement authorized by this 

resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment 

earnings to the United States in future years. 

4. That the Town Manager, the Finance Director, and other proper officers and

officials of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to 

complete the Project and to enter into the lease-purchase agreement.  

Approved this 14th day of July 2020. 

TOWN COUNCIL 

___________________________________ 

James Brown, Chairperson  

ATTEST 

_________________________________ 

Kelly Bilodeau, Town Clerk 



TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON OF THE STATE OF CONNECTICUT 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LEASE-PURCHASE FINANCING TO FINANCE 

ACQUISITON OF A PUBLIC WORKS EXCAVATOR AND RELATED EQUIPMENT 

July 14, 2020 

WHEREAS, the Town of East Hampton of the State of Connecticut (the "Town") 

contemplates entering into a lease-purchase agreement to finance the costs of acquisition of a 

Public Works Heavy Excavator and equipment related thereto (the "Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town has determined that a true and very real need 

exists for the acquisition of the Project; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Council has taken the necessary steps, including any legal bidding 

requirements, under applicable law to arrange for the acquisition of the Project; and  

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that interest on such lease-purchase financing shall be 

exempt from Federal income taxation; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Council hereby determines that such a lease-purchase financing is 

in the best interests of Town; and  

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that a payment may be due under the Agreement during the 

fiscal year ending June 30, 2021 and that the general fund has amounts sufficient for such payment; 

and 

WHEREAS, the lease-purchase financing agreement will contain a non-appropriation 

provision; and 

WHEREAS, The Town Council has the powers, among others, (1) to provide for the due 

execution of contracts of the Town, (2)  to lease real and personal property for the Town, and (3) 

to enter into contracts for any services and to purchase or contract to purchase any supplies, 

materials, equipment and other commodities required by the Town.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON:  

1. That the Town undertake a lease-purchase financing in a principal amount not to

exceed $110,000, and with an amortization period not to exceed seven (7) years, to finance the 

costs of the Project, the first payment on the lease-purchase financing may be made in the 2020/21 

fiscal year from the general fund.  The Project may include acquisition costs, equipment, legal 

fees, capitalized net interest cost and other financing costs, and other expenses related to the Project 

and its financing.   

2 That the Town Manager or the Finance Director of the Town are authorized to 

negotiate, approve, execute and deliver on behalf of the Town any lease-purchase agreement and 

any certificates or documents related to the acquisition or the financing and are authorized to 

determine the amounts, dates, interest rates, maturities, prepayment terms, form and other details 



-2- 

 
  

 

of the lease-purchase agreement; and to perform all other acts and execute all other documents 

which are necessary or appropriate to enter into the lease-purchase agreement, including without 

limitation any agreement with regards to the escrow of the proceeds of the lease-purchase 

agreement.   

 

3. That the Town Council, acting on behalf of the Town, hereby declares the Town's 

official intent under Federal Income Tax Regulation Section 1.150-2 that costs of the Project may 

be funded initially from available funds of the Town, and that the Town reasonably expects to 

reimburse any such initial funding sources from the proceeds of the lease-purchase financing for 

the Project in an aggregate principal amount anticipated not to exceed $110,000.  The Chairman 

or the Vice-Chairman of the Town Council and the Town Manager or the Finance Director of the 

Town are authorized to amend such declaration of official intent as the Chairman or the Vice-

Chairman of the Town Council and the Town Manager or the Finance Director of the Town deems 

necessary or advisable and to bind the Town pursuant to such representations and covenants as the 

Chairman or the Vice-Chairman of the Town Council and the Town Manager or the Finance 

Director of the Town deem necessary or advisable in order to maintain the continued exemption 

from federal income taxation of interest on the lease-purchase agreement authorized by this 

resolution, if issued on a tax-exempt basis, including covenants to pay rebates of investment 

earnings to the United States in future years. 

 

4. That the Town Manager, the Finance Director, and other proper officers and 

officials of the Town are authorized to take all other action which is necessary or desirable to 

complete the Project and to enter into the lease-purchase agreement.  

 

 

 

Approved this 14th day of July 2020.  

 

 

TOWN COUNCIL  

 

___________________________________  

James Brown, Chairperson  

 

 

 

ATTEST  

 

_________________________________  

Kelly Bilodeau, Town Clerk 

 



Agenda Item #10a















BOARD AND COMMISSION SUMMARY 
JUNE 2020 

Arts & Culture Commission 
No meeting 

Board of Finance 
The Board of Finance met on June 8 via Zoom.  They approved the following resolution: 

Resolved, that the Board of Finance recommends that the Town Council appropriate up 
to $642,926 to the capital reserve fund transfer out account; and the appropriation shall 
be funded from unanticipated revenues ($338,337) and unexpended Town operation 
budgets ($304,589) and the amount of the appropriation shall be allocated as follows: 
CNG community contribution $150,000; 2006 debt payment $155,700; Aeration 
$135,000; Pre-fund 2021 capital program $202,226. 
Further resolved that the Finance Director and Town Manager be authorized to make 
budget transfers in an amount not to exceed $304,589 from unexpended line items and 
the amount of those transfers shall be reported to the Board of Finance and Town Council 
upon completion. 

Brownfields Redevelopment Agency 
No meeting 

Clean Energy Task Force 
No meeting 

Commission on Aging 
The Commission on Aging met on June 18 via Zoom.  Senior Center Director JoAnn Ewing 
provided an overview of the services being provided to seniors during the COVID-19 
outbreak.  The meal program and CERT shopping program are ongoing.  There was a car 
parade for Dick Bolles’ 100th birthday.  Ms. Ewing and several members of the commission 
attended a virtual conference.  Several members of the commission are reviewing an Aging 
Mastery program.   

Conservation-Lake Commission 
The Conservation-Lake Commission met on June 11 via Zoom.  The members reviewed 
and discussed three plan reviews. There were updates on the budget review and the 
watershed projects and federal funding. The members discussed monitoring the lake after 
the aeration system is installed and functional. Hillary Kenyon Garavoy gave a power point 
presentation on her findings for her mapping program of the lake. She compared her mud 
samples to the mud samples taken in 1990. Russ Melmed from the Chatham Health 
District discussed the new observation practices for blue green algae in the lake to the 
commission members. There will be no more cell counting of the algae in water samples. 
There was an update for the sub-committee report on education and the lake level was 
briefly discussed.  

Agenda Item #15a



Design Review Board 
The Design Review Board met on June 18 via Zoom. The members discussed the plan 
review for the new Edgewater Hill Market Square 2. Stephen Motto of Edgewater Hill 
Properties was on the Zoom call to present to the members. All the questions the members 
had were answered and the members approved of the plan with one added condition. 
 
Economic Development Commission 
The Economic Development Commission met on June 16 via Zoom. The members 
discussed the new regulation to help home-based businesses within the town with the 
chairman of Planning and Zoning. The EDC members will be involved in the preliminary 
discussion of the regulation and deciding how to draft it. The members discussed the 
business brochure, the P&Z minutes and approvals, the new business banner location, the 
Belltown spotlight on business, and the town beautification topics under old business. A 
member brought up the possible difficulties a new business would have trying to open their 
store/ business within the town. The members briefly discussed this topic, but it was 
pointed out that there is a step by step instruction on what the owner needs to do to open 
their business on the town’s website. The members received an update from the Town 
Manager. The town budget was approved by the Town Council. 
 
Ethics Commission 
No meeting  
 
Fire Commission 
The Fire Commission met on June 15 via Zoom.  The board members discussed the unpaid 
physicals from this fiscal year’s budget. The physicals will be placed on a PO to hold the 
money from this year’s budget. Both the Fire Marshal and Fire Chief read out their reports. 
The dry hydrant topic is being tabled for next month’s meeting since the contractor needs 
to finish the Chestnut Hill hydrant. The Hurst tools have been purchased and installed on 
the trucks. The budget and purchases from this year’s budget was discussed as well. The 
members were informed of a flag project that is being planned in the town.  
 
Inland Wetland Watercourses Agency 
The Inland Wetland Watercourses Agency met on June 24 via Zoom. 
Agent Approvals:  

A. IW-20-098: Kelly Foster, 29 Wangonk Tr., Construction of a deck in the Upland 
Review Area. Map 09A/Block 70C/ Lot 27 – Approved per Agency 

B. IW-20-014: Theater Square LLC, 11 North Main St., Construction of 20’ x 40’ deck 
in Upland Review Area. Map 01A/ Block 39A/ Lot 28A – Approved per Agency 

C. IW-20-015: Theater Square LLC, 11 North Main St., Filling for widened drive aisle 
at rear of building in Upland Review Area. Map 01A/ Block 39A/ lot 28A – Approved 
per Agency 

 
Continued Applications:  

A. IW-20-011:  Edgewater Hill Enterprises, LLC., construction of Market Square 2 
building with regulated activities in the Upland Review Area.  Map 10A/Block 
85/Lot 5C. Approved (4-0) 



B. IW-20-012:  Edgewater Hill Enterprises, LLC., re-subdivision approval for the 
creation of 2 lots.  Map 10A/Block 85/Lot 5C. Approved (4-0) 

 
New Applications: 

A.  IW-20-019:  David Bengston, 82 Spellman Point Road, to demolish the existing 
home and construct a new 1,713.96 sq. ft. single family home within the Upland 
Review Area.  Map 09A/Block 70/Lot 3. Continued to the next regularly scheduled 
meeting on July 29, 2020 (4-0) 

 
Joint Facilities  
No meeting 
 
Library Advisory Board 
The Library Advisory Board met on June 1 via Zoom.   The members discussed the Library 
budget.  The Strategic Plan is on hold at this time.  April Hannon, Children’s Librarian, 
updated the board on the library’s launch of curbside services.  They discussed plans for 
the Phase 2 reopening and the Summer Reading Program. 
 
Middle Haddam Historic District Commission 
The Middle Haddam Historic District Commission met on June 25 via Zoom.  The 
commission members reviewed one application for their public hearing. The applicant was 
present to answer the member’s questions. The existing siding on the north side of the 
house will be replaced by new vinyl siding that matches the color of the house; and the two 
existing picture windows will be replaced by two sliding windows. The new windows will 
be installed in the same footprint of the existing windows. The members accepted the 
application as is and to be passed on to the building department. The members briefly 
discussed the status of paving the parking lot at Cobalt Lodge. Mr. Walsh informed the 
members that he will be submitting an application to remodel and repair parts of his house 
to the Town Hall for the next commission meeting. 
 
Parks & Recreation Advisory Board 
The Parks & Recreation Advisory Board met on June 2 via Zoom.  Jeremy Hall and Shawn 
Mullen discussed the protocols for dealing with Covid-19 for Sears Park and for Summer 
Camp programs.  Guidelines and procedures were put in place for all activities and facility 
usage.  Jeremy Hall also discussed the 519 grant and construction work at Sears Park 
scheduled to be completed.   
 
Planning & Zoning Commission 
The Planning & Zoning Commission met on June 3 via Zoom. 
Public Hearings: 

A. Application PZC-20-001:  Sports on 66, LLC., 265 West High St., for a Special Permit 
to sell Alcohol as an accessory use. (Sec. 8.4.B).  Map 6/Block 12/Lot 20. The 
applicant requested an extension to the next regularly scheduled meeting on July 1, 
2020.  Extension request accepted (7-0) 

B. Application PZC-20-002:  Stanislaw Oleksenko, 11 Cone Road, 4 lot subdivision of 
14.766 acres parcel.  Map 6/Block 36/Lot 6A.  Continued to the next regularly 
scheduled meeting on July 1, 2020 (7-0) 

C. Application PZC-20-004:  Lisa Sherman, 50 Main St., for a Zone Change:  R-1 to 



PO/R.  Map 02A/Block 47/Lot 25. Applicant requested an extension to the July 1, 
2020 regular meeting.  Extension request accepted (7-0)   

 
New Business:   

A. Application PZC-20-010:  Edgewater Hill Enterprises, East High St., for a Re-
Subdivision for 2 lots.  Map 10A/Block 85/Lot 5C.  Continued to next regularly      
scheduled meeting on July 1, 2020.  (7-0) 

B. Application PZC-20-011:  Edgewater Hill Enterprises, East High St., for a site plan 
review for a new mixed-use building in accordance with the MUDD Zone Master 
Plan.   Map 10A/Block 85/Lot.  Continued to next regularly scheduled meeting on 
July 1,  

       2020. (7-0) 
C. Application PZC-20-012:  Theater Square, 11 North Main St., for a Site Plan 

Modification for a 25 x 25 deck and a crosswalk with stop sign.  Map 01A/Block                
39A/Lot 28A 5C.  Approved (7-0) 

 
Old Business: 

A. Application PZC-20-003:  Lisa Sherman, for an Amendment to Zoning Regulation 
5.4.A PO/R Zone.  Continued to the next regularly scheduled meeting on July 1, 2020 
(7-0) 

B. Discussion: Update Sign Regulation to Include PO/R Zone Sign Standards.   Updates 
to Sec. 3.1 Lake Pocotopaug Protection Zone:  Continued to the next regularly 
scheduled meeting on July 1, 2020 (7-0) 

C. Discussion: Home Based Occupations:  Continued to next regularly scheduled 
meeting on July 1, 2020.  (7-0) 

D. Updates to Sec. 3.1 Lake Pocotopaug Protection Zone:  Continued to next regularly 
scheduled meeting on July 1, 2020.  (7-0) 

E. Updates to the Official East Hampton Zoning Map:  Continued to the next regularly 
scheduled meeting on July 1, 2020 (7-0) 

 
Planning & Zoning also held a Special meeting on June 15.  A public hearing was held for 
Application PZC-20-014:  Town of East Hampton, Brookhaven Park Beach, Park Road for 
the installation of an equipment shed for the Lake Aeration system.  Map 10A/ Block 
82/Lot 26A.  Approved (7-0) 
 
Town Cemetery Board  
The Town Cemetery Board met on June 17 via Zoom.  Public Works Director Matt Walsh 
provided an overview of work that is needed in the town owned cemeteries.  The members 
discussed the additional land that was purchased for the Young Street Cemetery and the 
plans for this area.  Anchor Engineering had done a wetland survey.  The members made 
a motion to approve a survey at Skinnerville, paving and tree work at various cemeteries 
with the current fiscal year budget funds.  
 
Town Facility Building Committee  
The Town Facility Building Committee met on June 4.  The members received updates 
from the architect, construction manager, and the OPM. The last couple of issues with the 
building were completed. A site walk by the Building Department official and the Fire 
Marshal was performed, and some issues were found. But there has been no contact by 



either department to the OPM or the construction manager. There needs to be a written 
account of the problems before the issues can be addressed. The members then approved 
four invoices.  
 
The Town Facility Building Committee met on June 18.  Members received updates for the 
architect, construction manager and OPM.  Meetings are being held regarding the audio-
visual equipment in the building. The items on the final list from the Building Official and 
Fire Marshal are the lobby railing, stairwell 2 railing, roof hatch and two locks on the 
ladder parapet. Six change orders were approved, and one was tabled; and three invoices 
were approved. 
 
Water Pollution Control Authority  
The Water Pollution Control Authority Board held a virtual Special meeting on June 16. 
Mr.  Clayton reported on the main sewer line break near Prospect Hill (Colchester) to 
Smith St (East Hampton) on the Airline Trail.  The ruptures were caused by hydrogen 
sulfate gas collecting in the high and low spots of the pipe and trapping the air 
consequently rotting the pipe. A temporary 1500 ft bypass pipe was installed over the 
surface of the trail. which required multiple days of 24hr septage truck pumping and crew 
work. Approximately 200 feet of sewer line will need to be replaced.  Mr. Clayton is 
recommending the upgrades to the generators on Pine Trail and Barbara Avenue in lieu of 
the Pine Trail Force Main (on hold). The contractor agrees to honor original amount of 
$259K. 
 
A Public Hearing was held for the proposed 2020-21 Water Budget and recommended 
water rates for the customers of the Village Center and Royal Oaks. The Budget will not 
require a rate change in FY 20-21. No public attended.  The Water Budget will go to Town 
Council on June 23, for final approval.  A Public Hearing was held to propose an 
amendment to the Sewer Use charge resolution section 5E to change the Sewer Use 
payments from one payment yearly on October 1 to two equal payments on October 1 and 
April 1 of each year, or in other such schedule as determined by the authority. No public 
attended. Vote 7-0 approved   
 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
The Zoning Board of Appeals met on June 8. 
Public Hearings 

A. Application ZBA-20-005, Carra Zukowski, 45 Day Point Rd., for a variance to reduce 
the rear setback from 25’ to 1.3’ to demo the existing home and rebuild a new single-
family home.  Sec. 4.1.E Map 10A/Block 83/Lot 36A.  Approved 4-0 

B. Application ZBA-20-006, Town of East Hampton, Brookhaven Park Beach, Park 
Road for a front yard setback variance from 25’ to 1’ and a side yard variance from 6’ 
to 1’ for  the installation of an equipment shed for the Lake Aeration system.  Map 
10A/ Block 82/Lot 26A.  Approved 4-0 

 
 




